
  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 “In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you require a disability related 
modification or accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please call the City Clerk’s office at 310-952-1720 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.” 
(Government Code Section 54954.2) 
Agenda posted - Approval of Executive Session Agenda (Closed Session) 
CALL TO ORDER: CARSON RECLAMATION AUTHORITY 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Executive Session (Closed Session) - Ceremonial Presentation 
CLOSED SESSION (None) 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS – CLOSED SESSION ITEMS ONLY 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
 
RECESS INTO CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
RECONVENE:  OPEN SESSION 
 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION  
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FOR MATTERS LISTED ON THE AGENDA (MEMBERS OF THE 
PUBLIC) (LIMITED TO ONE HOUR) 
The public may address the members of the Carson Reclamation Authority on any matters within 
the jurisdiction of the Carson Reclamation Authority or on any items on the agenda of the Carson 
Reclamation Authority, other than closed session matters, prior to any action taken on the agenda.  
Speakers are limited to no more than three minutes, speaking once.  Oral communications will be 
limited to one(1) hour unless extended by order of the Chair with the approval of the Authority 
Board. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None 
 
   

CITY OF CARSON 
RECLAMATION  AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY,  APRIL 5, 2016 
701 East Carson Street 

Helen Kawagoe Council Chambers 
4:30 P.M.  – Regular Session 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
CARSON RECLAMATION AUTHORITY 



 
 

Carson Reclamation Authority 
PAGE 2 

CONSENT  (Items 1 - 5) 
These items are considered to be routine items of AUTHORITY business and have, 
therefore, been placed on the CONSENT CALENDAR.  If AUTHORITY wishes to discuss any 
item or items, then such item or items should be removed from the CONSENT CALENDAR.  
For items remaining on the CONSENT CALENDAR, a single motion to ADOPT the 
recommended action is in order. 
DEMAN  
Item No. 1.  2016-392 CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 16-05-CRJPA APPROVING 

CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $419,039.40 
  

Recommendation:  TAKE the following actions: 

1. APPROVE Resolution No. 16-05-CRJPA, “A RESOLUTION 
OF THE CARSON RECLAMATION AUTHORITY OF THE 
CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CLAIMS 
AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $419,039.40.” 

2. AUTHORIZE the Chairman to execute the Resolution 
following approval as to form by the Authority Attorney. 

 
 
Item No. 2.  2016-385 CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 16-06-CRJPA AUTHORIZING 

THE INVESTMENT OF CARSON RECLAMATION 
AUTHORITY FUNDS IN THE LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT 
FUND ESTABLISHED BY THE CALIFORNIA STATE 
TREASURY 

  
 Recommendation:   TAKE the following action: 
 

  WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution No. 16-06-
CRJPA, “A RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON RECLAMATION 
AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING A LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT ACCOUNT 
FOR THE CARSON RECLAMATION AUTHORITY.” 

 
 
Item No. 3.  2016-404 CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CARSON RECLAMATION AUTHORITY AND MICHAEL 
BAKER INTERNATIONAL FOR CIVIL ENGINEERING 
SERVICES AND ADOPT BUDGET RESOLUTION NO. 16-04-
CRJPA IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

  
Recommendation:  TAKE the following actions: 

1. APPROVE the agreement for professional services with 
Michael Baker International for engineering services in a 
not-to-exceed amount of $160,000. 

2.  WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution No. 16-04-



 
 

Carson Reclamation Authority 
PAGE 3 

CRJPA, “A RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON 
RECLAMATION AUTHORITY AMENDING THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2015-16 BUDGET IN THE CARSON 
RECLAMATION AUTHORITY FUND.” 

3. AUTHORIZE the Chairman to execute the agreement for 
professional services. 

 
 

Item No. 4  2016-412 AUTHORIZATION TO DISBURSE FUNDS TO THE CITY OF 
CARSON FOR PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
PROVIDED BY THE CITY MANAGER 

  
Recommendation:  TAKE the following actions: 

1. AUTHORIZE an annual payment of $45,000 to the City of 
Carson for project management services provided by the 
City Manager.  

2. APPROVE an additional appropriation of $22,500 for Fiscal 
Year 2015/16 in account number 78-70-781-965 6004 to 
cover the cost of the project management services for half of 
the fiscal year.  

 
 

Item No. 5.  2016-415 APPROVAL OF WORK ORDER REQUESTS FROM TETRA 
TECH BY THE CARSON RECLAMATION AUTHORITY, 
REPLACING PREVIOUSLY APPROVED CHANGE ORDERS 
AND AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL TASKS, AND APPROVING 
RESOLUTION NO. 16-07-CRJPA AMENDING THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2015-16 BUDGET IN THE AMOUNT OF $358,069 

 
Recommendation:  TAKE the following actions: 

 
1. APPROVE Work Order Request to approve Work Order 27 

and Work Order 28, listed and described below, which have 
been reviewed and approved by the CRA’s project manager 
and the environmental consultant.   

 
2. WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution No. 16-07-

CRJPA, “A RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON 
RECLAMATION AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF CARSON, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 
BUDGET IN THE AMOUNT OF $358,069.” 

 
 
SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY  (None) 
Public testimony is restricted to three minutes per speaker, speaking once (excepting 
applicants who are afforded a right of rebuttal, if desired), unless extended by order of the 
Chair with the approval of the Authority.  



 
 

Carson Reclamation Authority 
PAGE 4 

UNFIISHED BUSINESS 
NEW BUSINESS DISCUSSION 
DISCUSSION  (None) 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FOR MATTERS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA (MEMBERS OF 
THE PUBLIC)  
The public may at this time address the members of the Carson Reclamation Authority on 
any matters within the jurisdiction of the Carson Reclamation Authority.  No action may be 
taken on non-agendized items except as authorized by law.  Speakers are requested to 
limit their comments to no more than three minutes each, speaking once. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  (AUTHORITY MEMBERS) 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF UNFINISHED OR CONTINUED CLOSED SESSION ITEMS (AS 
NECESSARY) 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



CITY OF CARSON 701 East Carson Street

File #: 2016-392, Version: 1

Report to Carson Reclamation Authority
Tuesday, April 05, 2016

Consent

SUBJECT:

CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 16-05-CRJPA APPROVING CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN
THE AMOUNT OF $419,039.40

I. SUMMARY

This action approves invoices in the amount of $419,039.40 submitted for work
pursuant to contracts and agreements previously approved by the Carson
Reclamation Authority (CRA) Board.

II. RECOMMENDATION

TAKE the following actions:

1. APPROVE Resolution No. 16-05-CRJPA, “A RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON
RECLAMATION AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA,
APPROVING CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $419,039.40.”

2. AUTHORIZE the Chairman to execute the Resolution following approval as to
form by the Authority Attorney.

III. ALTERNATIVES

1. TAKE another action the Authority deems appropriate.

1.

IV. BACKGROUND

Since May, 2015 the CRA Board has taken a number of actions to move the
remediation of the former Cal-Compact Landfill project forward and to create

CITY OF CARSON Printed on 3/29/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/


File #: 2016-392, Version: 1

remediation of the former Cal-Compact Landfill project forward and to create
systems that allow the review and approval of the work undertaken by the
remediation contractor, Tetra Tech, and other contractors and consultants in a fair
but transparent manner.

This action includes the approval of a Claims and Demands Resolution approving
several Tetra Tech invoices (payment request nos. 121-134), which have been
reviewed and approved by the CRA’s Project Manager (SEG Advisors) and
Environmental Services Advisor (SCS Engineers), prior to staff approval. It also
approves a monthly payment to SCS as well.

V. FISCAL IMPACT

The total expenditure in this period is $419,039.40.

VI. EXHIBITS

1. Resolution No. 16-05-CRJPA.  (pgs. 3-4)

Prepared by: John Raymond, Community Development Director

CITY OF CARSON Printed on 3/29/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/


February 7, 2012  

 

EXHIBIT NO. 1                                                  3 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-05-CRJPA 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-05-CRJPA, A RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON RECLAMATION 

AUTHORITY RATIFYING CLAIMS AND DEMANDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $419,039.40  

 

THE CARSON RECLAMATION AUTHORITY DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE 

AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1: The following claims and demands have been audited as required by law and 

are hereby ratified in the amount hereinafter set forth: 

 
Payee Name Payment 

Number Purpose 
Invoice 
Number 

Payment 
Amount 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 
121 

(206) Quarterly Soil Gas 
Monitoring 

51025909 $1,937.71 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 
122 

(211) Alternative Compliance 
Plan 

51025912 $531.34 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 
123 

(213) Reclaimed Water for 
Dust Control 

51025914 $1,702.67 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 
124 

(WO18) Evaluate New 
Conceptual Mall Plan 

51025921 $14,324.40 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 125 (209) SWPPP 51026156 $98,463.29 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 
126 

(WO21) Site Security and 
Maintenance 

51026166 $55,745.40 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 
127 

(WO22) Watering the 
Prescriptive Clay Cover 

51026171 $8,889.04 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 128 (WO24) LFGETS OM&M 51026175 $60,426.21 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 
129 

(WO16) Import of Fill & 
Stockpiling 

51026178 $22,160.74 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 
130 

(WO17) Interim Air Intrusion 
Controls 

51026576 $6,510.48 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 
131 

(WO23) Maintain Storage 
Yard 

51026579 $15,693.77 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 132 (WO25) Project Management 51026571 $81,299.61 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 
133 

(WO19) Perimeter Air 
Monitoring 

51026792 $34,175.39 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 134 (WO20) Vector Control 51026794 $3,849.35 

     

Total Tetra Tech $405,709.40  
 

Other Invoices Submitted for Payment 

SCS ENGINEERS  Consulting Services - February 0274495 $13,330.00 

TOTAL ALL INVOICES $419,039.40 

 

On April 5, 2016, the Carson Reclamation Authority ratified the above Demands and the City 

Treasurer is hereby directed by pay, out of the funds named hereon, to each of the Claimants 

mailto:gmurillo@carson.ca.us?subject=Resolution


RESOLUTION NO. 16-05-CRJPA 

PAGE 2 OF 2 

4 

listed above, the amount of warrant appearing opposite their respective names, for the purpose 

stated on the respective demands, making a total of $419,039.40.  
 

 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 5
th

 day of April, 2016. 

CARSON RECLAMATION AUTHORITY, a 

public body 

By: ___________________________________ 

Executive Director John S. Raymond 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 

Deputy Secretary Joy Simarago 
 
 
 

 

 

 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 

 

In accordance with Section 37.202 of the California Government Code, I hereby certify 

that the above demands are accurate and that funds are available for payment thereof. I certify 

under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

 

 

 EXECUTED THE  _________________ DAY OF 

 

 _______________ AT CARSON, CALIFORNIA 

 

 

 __________________________________________ 

 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR  

 JOHN S. RAYMOND 
 



CITY OF CARSON 701 East Carson Street

File #: 2016-385, Version: 1

Report to Carson Reclamation Authority
Tuesday, April 05, 2016

Consent

SUBJECT:

CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 16-06-CRJPA AUTHORIZING THE INVESTMENT OF
CARSON RECLAMATION AUTHORITY FUNDS IN THE LOCAL AGENCY
INVESTMENT FUND ESTABLISHED BY THE CALIFORNIA STATE TREASURY

I. SUMMARY

The responsibility of investing idle funds is that of the Reclamation Authority Treasurer.
According to the Successor Agency’s Bond Indenture, the source of the Reclamation
Authority’s funding, idle funds can only be invested in specific securities as outlined in the
Indenture. The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is listed as an approved investment
vehicle. The Bond funds are projected to be fully exhausted within the next 2.5 years
since they are intended to complete the landfill remediation; given this short time horizon
for investment purposes, it was determined that idle funds of the Reclamation Authority
would be best served if invested in a LAIF account which provides safety, liquidity and
yield and an ability to withdraw funds at any time without penalty. As a requirement for
investing in LAIF, approval by the legislative body must be obtained before an account
can be established. Since the Authority is a separate entity, Exhibit No. 1 is Resolution
No. 16-06-CRAJPA for consideration by the Authority Board. A companion resolution will
be adopted by the City Council as the legislative body.

II. RECOMMENDATION

WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution No. 16-06-CRJPA, “A RESOLUTION OF
THE CARSON RECLAMATION AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF CARSON, CALIFORNIA,
AUTHORIZING A LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT ACCOUNT FOR THE CARSON
RECLAMATION AUTHORITY.”

III. ALTERNATIVES

TAKE another action the Authority Board deems appropriate.

IV. BACKGROUND

The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is a voluntary program created by statute;

CITY OF CARSON Printed on 3/30/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/


File #: 2016-385, Version: 1

The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is a voluntary program created by statute;
began in 1977 as an investment alternative for California's local governments and special
districts and it continues today under Treasurer John Chiang's administration.

This program offers local agencies the opportunity to participate in a major portfolio, which
invests billions of dollars, using the investment expertise of the State Treasurer's Office
investment staff at no additional cost to the taxpayer.

The maximum amount of funds that can be invested in LAIF is sixty five million dollars
($65,000,000). These funds are backed by the State of California. The right of the
Reclamation Authority to withdraw its deposited funds from LAIF may not be altered,
impaired, or denied in any way, by any state official or state agency based upon the
state's failure to adopt a State Budget by July 1 of each new fiscal year. Reclamation
Authority funds can be withdrawn at any time without penalty.

V. FISCAL IMPACT

Additional income.

VI. EXHIBITS

Resolution No. 16-06-CRJPA.  (pgs. 3-4)

Prepared by: Monica Cooper, Carson City Treasurer

CITY OF CARSON Printed on 3/30/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/






CITY OF CARSON 701 East Carson Street

File #: 2016-404, Version: 1

Report to Carson Reclamation Authority
Tuesday, April 05, 2016

Consent

SUBJECT:

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BY
AND BETWEEN THE CARSON RECLAMATION AUTHORITY AND MICHAEL BAKER
INTERNATIONAL FOR CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES AND ADOPT BUDGET
RESOLUTION NO. 16-04-CRJPA IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

I. SUMMARY

This action is to approve an agreement for professional services with Michael Baker
International (Consultant) to provide professional civil engineering services for the
Authority’s 157-acre project at the former Cal Compact Landfill site (Property). The
agreement will be for a not-to-exceed amount of $160,000. The contract term will
be for 12 months from the effective date. The firm has been the civil engineering
contractor on the site since prior to the Authority owning the property.

Approval of the agreement would also require a budget resolution increasing the
Authority’s budget expenditures in its Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16 budget. Adoption of
Resolution Number 16-04-CRJPA would authorize the increase.

II. RECOMMENDATION

TAKE the following actions:

1. APPROVE the agreement for professional services with Michael Baker
International for engineering services in a not-to-exceed amount of $160,000.

2. WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution No. 16-04-CRJPA, “A
RESOLUTION OF THE CARSON RECLAMATION AUTHORITY AMENDING
THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 BUDGET IN THE CARSON RECLAMATION
AUTHORITY FUND.”

3. AUTHORIZE the Chairman to execute the agreement for professional services.

CITY OF CARSON Printed on 3/30/2016Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/


File #: 2016-404, Version: 1

III. ALTERNATIVES

TAKE any other action the Authority Board deems appropriate.

IV. BACKGROUND

Since taking title to the Property in May, 2015, the Authority Board has taken a
number of actions to move the redevelopment project forward and to create
systems that allow the review and approval of the work undertaken by the
remediation contractor, Tetra Tech. City and Authority staff continues to work with
Tetra Tech on a number of on-site issues related to the ultimate development of the
site. Authority staff is currently working on revising the previously designed Lenardo
Drive fronting the new proposed outlet mall. Due to the complexity of the project,
redesigning Lenardo Drive requires the use of a qualified civil engineer. The
Consultant has been working on the site since the previous owner of the Property,
Starwood Capital, had site control, and recently worked with Authority staff to
develop a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan for the Property (SWPPP) and
complete an order of magnitude study of the cost to backfill Lenardo Drive.

In the prior site development plan, Lenardo Drive was shown as “depressed” (below
surrounding grade) with a pedestrian bridge linking development features in
different parts of the Property. For convenience, that area was referred to as the
“Lenardo Depression.” In order to maintain the original development schedule at
the time, that overall excavation was completed and the storm drain, sanitary sewer,
and landfill gas header lines were constructed in the area. The existing storm drain
and sanitary sewer lines were designed by the Consultant. Those utility and landfill
gas lines were designed to accommodate the grades of the Lenardo Depression,
sized to accommodate the then-planned development, and with laterals located in
accordance with the planned development. Since that construction was completed,
the prior site development process was terminated and it has become clear that any
new future site development would not incorporate the Lenardo Depression.
Therefore, it is necessary to backfill the Lenardo Depression near original grade for
future site development. Modifications to the storm drain, sanitary sewer, and
landfill gas header lines in the area will also be necessary to deal with the deeper
soil cover.  In addition, a new SWPPP will need to be completed.

Given the Consultant’s experience with the Property, Authority staff solicited a
proposal from the Consultant to perform the additional civil engineering services
required to redesign Lenardo Drive. Furthermore, due to the unique geotechnical
conditions of the site, which include cells with synthetic liners and clay caps, it is
important to continue to use the same Consultant for civil engineering services on
the Property. The Consultant’s scope of services will include; preparation of
preliminary grading plan, preparation of preliminary utility plan, preparation of rough
grading plan, SWPPP updates, review of county sewer plans, revision of street
improvements, meetings and construction support. A full description of the
Consultant’s scope of services and tasks is included in the agreement for

CITY OF CARSON Printed on 3/30/2016Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/


File #: 2016-404, Version: 1

Consultant’s scope of services and tasks is included in the agreement for
professional services (Exhibit No. 1).

Approval of the agreement for professional services will also require adoption of
Resolution No. 16-04-CRJPA (Exhibit No. 2) authorizing an increase in the
Authority’s expenditures for the FY 2015-16 budget. The term of the agreement
would be for 12 months from the effective date and the work shall be completed for
a not-to-exceed amount of $160,000.

V. FISCAL IMPACT

Approval of the agreement for professional services and adoption of Resolution No.
16-04-CRJPA will increase the Authority’s expenditures for FY 2015-16 by
$160,000 in account number 78-70-781-965-6004; and the estimated remaining
fund balance at June 30, 2016 will be $41,781,920. Any unused funds in the
Consultant agreement, at the end FY 2015-16, will be carried over and included in
the Authority’s FY 2016-17 budget.

VI. EXHIBITS

1. Agreement for Professional Services. (pgs. 4-29)

2. Resolution No. 16-04-CRJPA. (pgs. 30-32)

Prepared by: Amelia Soto, A/Project Manager

CITY OF CARSON Printed on 3/30/2016Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/




























































CITY OF CARSON 701 East Carson Street

File #: 2016-412, Version: 1

Report to Carson Reclamation Authority
Tuesday, April 05, 2016

Consent

SUBJECT:

AUTHORIZATION TO DISBURSE FUNDS TO THE CITY OF CARSON FOR PROJECT
MANAGEMENT SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE CITY MANAGER

I. SUMMARY

On December 1, 2015, the City Council of the City of Carson approved an employment
contract with Mr. Kenneth C. Farfsing for the position of City Manager. The total
compensation of $240,000 was to be divided between the City and the CRA, with the CRA
share established at $45,000 annually to cover the cost of project management services.

II. RECOMMENDATION

1. AUTHORIZE an annual payment of $45,000 to the City of Carson for project
management services provided by the City Manager.

2. APPROVE an additional appropriation of $22,500 for Fiscal Year 2015/16 in account
number 78-70-781-965 6004 to cover the cost of the project management services for
half of the fiscal year.

III. ALTERNATIVES

None.

IV. BACKGROUND

The City of Carson appointed Mr. Kenneth C. Farfsing to the position of City Manager on
December 1, 2015. The terms of the employment is governed by an agreement between
the City of Carson and Mr. Farfsing that became effective on December 15, 2015. (Exhibit
No. 1). Under the Recitals of the agreement, Mr. Farfsing is requested to organize the
Carson Reclamation Authority which has critical projects that require active management.
For the project management services that will be provided by Mr. Farfsing, the cost to the
Carson Reclamation Authority will be $45,000 annually, as stipulated under Section 6.1 (b)

CITY OF CARSON Printed on 3/30/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/


File #: 2016-412, Version: 1

Carson Reclamation Authority will be $45,000 annually, as stipulated under Section 6.1 (b)
of the agreement. Should the CRA Board authorize the payment of the fees associated
with the services, the payment will be remitted based on the City’s quarterly billing.

V. FISCAL IMPACT

For Fiscal Year 2015/16, funds in the amount of $22,500 are required to make the
disbursements and are available in the CRA Bond Funds. Upon CRA Board approval of
this expense item, an additional $22,500 will need to be appropriated from the Bond Fund
balance to account number 78-70-781-965 6004.

VI. EXHIBITS

1. Carson City Manager Employment Agreement.  (Pgs. 3-24)

Prepared by: Trini H. Catbagan

CITY OF CARSON Printed on 3/30/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/


3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



CITY OF CARSON 701 East Carson Street

File #: 2016-415, Version: 1

Report to Carson Reclamation Authority
Tuesday, April 05, 2016

Consent

SUBJECT:

APPROVAL OF WORK ORDER REQUESTS FROM TETRA TECH BY THE CARSON
RECLAMATION AUTHORITY, REPLACING PREVIOUSLY APPROVED CHANGE
ORDERS AND AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL TASKS, AND APPROVING RESOLUTION
NO. 16-07-CRJPA AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 BUDGET IN THE AMOUNT
OF $358,069

I. SUMMARY

These work orders requested by Tetra Tech replace several Change Orders that have
been approved by the Carson Reclamation Authority (“CRA” or “Authority”) since July,
2015, and establish the work program for the remediation and infrastructure on the 157-
acre site through the end of the fiscal year. In January, 2016 the CRA approved a series of
“Work Orders” which will replace the existing Change Orders for contracting and billing
purposes. Several previously approved change orders remain in place, and there were
Work Order requests for new tasks as well.  These items are recommended for approval.

II. RECOMMENDATION

TAKE the following actions:

1. APPROVE Work Order Request to approve Work Order 27 and Work Order 28, listed
and described below, which have been reviewed and approved by the CRA’s project
manager and the environmental consultant.

2. WAIVE further reading and ADOPT Resolution No. 16-07-CRJPA, “A RESOLUTION
OF THE CARSON RECLAMATION AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF CARSON,
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 BUDGET IN THE AMOUNT
OF $358,069.”

III. ALTERNATIVES

CITY OF CARSON Printed on 3/30/2016Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/


File #: 2016-415, Version: 1

TAKE another action the Reclamation Authority deems appropriate.

IV. BACKGROUND

Pursuant to Sections 4.a. and 4.b. and Section 8 of a Settlement, Release and Indemnity
Agreement (“Agreement”) by and between the City of Carson (“City”), the Carson
Reclamation Authority (“Authority”), the Successor Agency to the Carson Redevelopment
Agency (“Successor Agency”), and Carson Marketplace, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
corporation (“CM”), “Assignment and Assumption of Obligations” and “Remediation Work”,
the Authority assumed the obligation to continue the remediation of the 157-acre project
site under a Fixed Price Operations and Maintenance Environmental Assurance
Agreement (“EAA”) dated December 31, 2007 with Tetra Tech, Inc.

The contract issued under the original EAA with Carson Marketplace is the baseline scope
of work. Direct remediation construction costs under the original EAA are paid through a
Trust Account held with Wells Fargo Bank. Work beyond the original scope is considered
a “Change Order” and subject to the review and approval of the CRA Board. The CRA’s
Change Order approval process commenced after it took title to the Property on May 18,
2015.

The following Work Order Requests are recommended for approval:

Work Order # Previous
Change
Order #

Description Requested
Amount

27 209 SWPPP Implementation for April thru September
2016.  The previous change order for SWPPP
work (CO 209) was fully expended by the end of
March 2016 as originally estimated.  WO 27
replaces CO-209 and has an estimated budget
that covers this work to the end of September
2016.  A new SWPPP plan will be prepared and
must be in place by October 1, and a new Work
Order will be brought for approval at that time.

$253,673

28 N/A (new) Support and Coordinate Design for Lenardo
Backfill.  This WO request assumes that the
CRA will contract directly with Michael Baker Inc.
(MBI) to address the engineering tasks for the
utilities/grading redesign and permitting.  It also
assumes that Tetra Tech will take the lead in the
geotechnical analysis and requirements of the
design.  We assumed a 6-month minimum time
frame to get this work completed.

$104,396

TOTAL $358,069

Work Order 27. Due to the further extension of the project schedule, a new work order to

CITY OF CARSON Printed on 3/30/2016Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/


File #: 2016-415, Version: 1

Work Order 27. Due to the further extension of the project schedule, a new work order to
reimburse Tetra Tech for continued implementation, maintenance and management of
SWPPP is required. Work Order Request (WO-27) covers 6 months commencing April 1,
2016, and is necessary to comply with the State Resource Board permit requirements for a
Risk Level-2 site. Tetra Tech's previous change order request COR 209 for this work was
from Oct 1, 2015 through Mar 31, 2016 and was completed by April 1, 2016. Since the
project is still on hold until a new development plan is selected and finalized, a new WO is
required to keep the site compliant with the State Resource Board permit requirements.

Work Order 28. In a prior site development plan, an area referred to as “Lenardo Drive”
was shown as “depressed” (below surrounding grade) with a pedestrian bridge over it that
linked development features in Cell 2 and Cell 4. For convenience, that area was referred
to as the “Lenardo Depression.” In order to maintain the original development schedule at
the time, that overall excavation was completed and the storm drain, sanitary sewer, and
landfill gas header lines were constructed in the area. The existing storm drain and
sanitary sewer lines were designed by RBF Consulting, now Michael Baker International
(MBI), and the existing landfill gas header was designed and installed by Tetra Tech.
Those utility and landfill gas lines were designed to accommodate the grades of the
Lenardo Depression, sized to accommodate the then-planned development, and with
laterals located in accordance with the planned development. Since that construction was
completed, the prior site development process was terminated and it has become clear
that any new future site development plan would not incorporate the Lenardo Depression.
Therefore, it is necessary to backfill the Lenardo Depression near original grade for future
site development. Modifications to the storm drain, sanitary sewer, and landfill gas header
lines in the area will also be necessary to deal with the deeper soil cover. The CRA
previously authorized MBI to conduct a preliminary engineering analysis, which resulted in
two Project Memos, dated October 14, 2015 and December 11, 2015. Those memos
contain results of early agency coordination and concept development. Going forward,
MBI will work under contract with CRA and coordinate with Tetra Tech to complete the
analysis as described in the scope of work below. Tetra Tech has coordinated scope of
work with MBI to ensure an effective overall approach for this work.

Because the Lenardo Depression is being used as a lined stormwater basin as part of
construction SWPPP compliance, the stormwater management plan at the site must also
be revised.

The overall purpose of this change order is, in coordination with work by MBI, to develop
the designs to modify to the storm drain, sanitary sewer, and landfill gas lines and to
backfill Lenardo Drive in preparation for a new future site development. Tetra Tech will also
assist MBI in permitting the new designs with the City of Carson and the County of Los
Angeles. A subsequent change order will address actual construction activities based on
the designs developed in this change order. Because this is anticipated to take 10-12
months to design, permit, and construct, this could become a critical path element for
future site development. Therefore, it is desirable to start this design and permitting project
as soon as possible.

CITY OF CARSON Printed on 3/30/2016Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/


File #: 2016-415, Version: 1

V. FISCAL IMPACT

The original amounts related to the Change Order 209 and Work Order 23 was budgeted
in the CRA budget. The budget impact of approving the change to Work Orders 15 will be
adjusted in March when the full SWPPP implementation cost gets reevaluated.

VI. EXHIBITS

Resolution No. 16-07-CRJPA.  (pgs. 5-6)

Prepared by: John S. Raymond, CRA Executive Director

CITY OF CARSON Printed on 3/30/2016Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/





	Carson Reclamation Authority Agency Packet.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	TextFileInSite-30-Mar-2016-04-55-52.pdf
	3d3182cd-2dc1-4bcc-9e9d-4a3b6945db9c.pdf
	TextFileInSite-30-Mar-2016-04-57-07.pdf
	440bd196-fe16-4f6d-88cd-5532fab1ca49.pdf
	TextFileInSite-30-Mar-2016-04-57-52.pdf
	7200a807-153f-4147-97d5-186bb8a5f2c2.pdf
	f826eec2-6a3f-4cb9-8ff0-bebdc59e1c15.pdf
	TextFileInSite-30-Mar-2016-04-59-05.pdf
	a43dab06-e46a-44eb-b815-b565a8a42968.pdf
	TextFileInSite-30-Mar-2016-05-01-58.pdf
	75db7236-cc5e-4595-8ce5-39cd8951ccb2.pdf




